T |Reporting

Services

Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/biodiv/cgrfal5/

Vol. 9 No. 647

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Wednesday, 21 January 2015

CGRFA 15 HIGHLIGHTS:
TUESDAY, 20 JANUARY 2015

CGRFA 15 delegates met in plenary throughout the day to
consider cross-sectoral issues, including: the application of
biotechnologies for the sustainable conservation and use of
genetic resources for food and agriculture (GRFA); climate
change and GRFA; biodiversity and nutrition; and access and
benefit-sharing (ABS) with regard to GRFA. Delegates also
discussed: animal GRFA, including preparation of the second
Report on the State of the World’s Animal GRFA (SoW-AnGR)
and implementation of the Global Plan of Action for Animal
Genetic Resources (GPA-AnGR); and forest GR, including
follow-up to the GPA for the Conservation, Sustainable Use
and Development of Forest GR (GPA-FGR).

CROSS-SECTORAL MATTERS

BIOTECHNOLOGIES FOR GRFA CONSERVATION
AND USE: The Secretariat introduced document CGRFA-
15/15/7. AFRICA, GRULAC, ASIA and the EU, speaking
also for Norway, Switzerland and Turkey (the EU),
supported strengthening developing-country capacities to
develop appropriate biotechnologies for the characterization,
conservation and utilization of GRFA at national and regional
levels. BRAZIL underscored the role of triangular cooperation
in fully understanding related risks and benefits.

The EU noted that field trials and contained use activities
must take place under specific biosafety regulations. The
NEAR EAST suggested studying trends and progress regarding
the application of biotechnologies in different regions.
CANADA noted that the nature of appropriate biotechnologies
may differ between regions. The US encouraged enhanced
coordination of work and dissemination of updated scientific
information. The IPC suggested strengthening regional
capacities for research on traditional knowledge of biodiversity
and the appropriate use of in situ conservation.

AUSTRALIA, IRAN, PARAGUAY and CANADA opposed
reference to risk assessment and socio-economic analysis,
to avoid duplication of work with other international bodies.
BRAZIL favored retaining the references to portray their
importance, even if FAO is not requested to conduct similar
analysis. ARGENTINA supported removing language on
risks and benefits, but underscored the importance of socio-
economic analysis. The EU suggested that Parties may
conduct such analyses at the national level. The US proposed
that members “may” highlight the importance of socio-
economic analysis of certain biotechnology applications in
the characterization, conservation and utilization of GRFA.
AFGHANISTAN supported having the FAO undertake socio-

economic analysis. ETHIOPIA and the IPC highlighted the
importance of assessing socio-economic risk. SEARICE
supported that FAO work on risk assessment.

The NEAR EAST and CANADA suggested requesting FAO
to periodically study trends and progress of the application of
biotechnology to the conservation and utilization of GRFA.
Noting that provisions for risk assessment already exist at
regional and national levels, BRAZIL proposed stating that
Parties “may wish to highlight the importance of conducting
socio-economic analysis.”

After informal consultations, delegates agreed to delete a
reference to “addressing benefits and risks of biotechnology”
and to add that “Parties may wish to undertake socio-economic
analyses of biotechnology applications, where appropriate.”

CLIMATE CHANGE AND GRFA: The Secretariat
introduced documents CGRFA-15/15/6 and Inf.15. AFRICA
supported the revised draft Guidelines to Support the
Integration of Genetic Diversity into National Climate
Change Adaptation Planning. BRAZIL and the US opposed
renegotiating the guidelines. ARGENTINA and the US
suggested clarifying that the guidelines are “voluntary”.

AFGHANISTAN asked whether the activities included in
the revised proposal of the programme of work would continue
to depend on extra-budgetary sources. ASIA said that GRFA
aspects should be considered within national adaptation plans,
but opposed developing a separate plan for GRFA and climate
change.

The EU highlighted the relevance of addressing both
mitigation and adaptation to climate change in the different
sectors, such as animals, plants and forests. The COOK
ISLANDS highlighted efforts to address food security concerns
in relation to climate change, including research on plant GRFA
for resilience. The UN Convention to Combat Desertification
(UNCCD) highlighted the interdependence between climate
change and land systems and the synergistic implementation
of plans and programmes to address climate change efficiently.
BIOVERSITY INTERNATIONAL stressed the relevance of
agricultural biodiversity in national climate change adaptation
planning. SEARICE highlighted the contribution of indigenous
peoples to climate change adaptation and supported raising
their awareness to develop location-specific climate change
policies.

BIODIVERSITY AND NUTRITION: The US reported
back from informal discussions, saying that delegates had
agreed to refer to “voluntary” guidelines and to qualify language
on research, implementation and awareness as “examples of
how mainstreaming could be implemented, depending on each
country’s needs and capabilities, as appropriate.”

Delegates agreed to the compromise text.

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@jiisd.org> is written and edited by Stefan Jungcurt, Ph.D., Delia Paul, Eugenia Recio, and
Asterios Tsioumanis, Ph.D. The Digital Editor is Kiara Worth. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@jisd.org>. The Director of [ISD Reporting
Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the European Commission (DG-ENV
and DG-CLIMATE), the Government of Switzerland (the Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN) and the Swiss Agency for Development 1
Cooperation (SDC)), and the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. General Support for the Bulletin during 2015 is provided by the German Federal Ministry
for the Environment, Nature Conservation, Building and Nuclear Safety (BMUB), the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN
International, the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental
Strategies - IGES), the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP), and the International Development Research Centre (IDRC). Specific
funding for coverage of this session has been provided by the UN Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO). Funding for translation of the Bulletin
into French has been provided by the Government of France, the Wallonia, Québec, and the International Organization of La Francophonie/Institute

http://enb.iisd.mobi/

for Sustainable Development of La Francophonie (IOF/IFDD). The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of
1ISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including
requests to provide reporting services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11D, New York, NY
10022 USA. The ENB Team at CGRFA 15 can be contacted by e-mail at <stefan@jiisd.org>.




Wednesday, 21 January 2015 §|SRgBSEtCi'e‘S

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Vol. 9 No. 647 Page 2

ACCESS AND BENEFIT-SHARING: Bert Visser (the
Netherlands) reported that the Friends of the Chair group had
agreed on text relating to the ABS draft elements, including a
proposal to reconvene the ABS expert team. He noted that the
group had not agreed on whether to adopt a draft resolution to
present this outcome to the FAO Conference, or to forward the
CGRFA 15 report without a resolution.

CANADA, supported by the EU, preferred a draft resolution
to give greater visibility and recognition to the draft elements.
He noted this would provide a source of information to
governments who may be considering national action, given the
Nagoya Protocol’s recent entry into force.

AFRICA expressed reluctance to adopt a resolution, saying
the draft elements have not been finalized.

Informal consultations will continue on Wednesday.

ANIMAL GRFA

Drago Kompan (Slovenia), speaking for Harvey Blackburn
(US), Chair of the Intergovernmental Technical Working Group
on Animal GRFA (ITWG-AnGR) introduced the report of the
group’s eighth session (CGRFA-15/15/9). The EU suggested
that FAO continue implementation of the GPA-AnGR, seeking
financial resources through, inter alia, partnerships. AFRICA
emphasized conservation and sustainable use of indigenous
breeds and their genetic improvement.

SOW-ANGR: The Secretariat introduced the second SoW-
AnGR (CGRFA-15/15/10) and related information documents
(CGRFA-15/15/Inf.17.1, Inf.17.2 and Inf.17.3) highlighting:
the importance of livestock diversity for adapting production
systems to future changes; new challenges caused by increased
demand for meat; and an increasing proportion of livestock at
risk, from 15% to 17% since 2005.

Hungary, for the EUROPEAN REGION (EUROPE),
supported by AFRICA, suggested preparing a report summary
and translating both documents into all UN languages. The US
expressed concern over data availability regarding livestock
breeds classified at risk.

CANADA called for the application of statistical tools to
accurately reflect the current status of animal populations and
breeds. BRAZIL recommended providing further information on
locally adapted breeds.

IMPLEMENTATION AND UPDATING OF THE GPA-
ANGR: The Secretariat introduced documents CGRFA-15/15/11,
Inf.18, Inf.19 and Inf. 20 and background study paper n0.66,
underscoring the stepwise approach to reviewing the second
GPA-AnGR. Most regions supported the stepwise approach.

AFRICA called for financial and technical support for GPA-
AnGR implementation. EUROPE prioritized inviting donors
to contribute before discussing maximum budgets or threshold
levels for implementation.

ASIA and AFRICA welcomed the draft guidelines for the
development of integrated multipurpose animal recording
systems, with AFRICA requesting that they be characterized as
“voluntary.”

EUROPE and AFRICA called for updating information
and breed classifications in the Domestic Animal Diversity
Information System (DAD-IS) to ensure informed decisions,
as well as maintaining DAD-IS as the global clearing house
mechanism. CANADA expressed concern over the DAD-IS’
lack of connection to other databases. CHINA underscored the
importance of DAD-IS and called for allocation of funds to
ensure full geographic representation.

Opposed by ARGENTINA and BRAZIL, the US expressed
concern that the use of the terms “exotic” or “locally adapted”
may lead to inflation of the number of breeds. Before taking
further budget decisions, the US suggested waiting for the
results of currently funded projects. The Secretariat clarified
a distinction between breeds and national breed populations,
noting that a breed may be spread over several countries and

may consist of several national breed populations some of
which may be classified as “locally adapted” in one country, and
“exotic” in another.

AUSTRALIA and the US questioned references to specific
sustainable development goals (SDGs), noting that the post-
2015 development agenda is still under negotiation. The
Secretariat responded that specific SDGs were mentioned to
maintain continuity as the GPA-AnGR had previously supported
the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) on environmental
sustainability and poverty. Delegates nonetheless agreed to the
US’ request to delete the reference.

FOREST GRFA

Pierre Bouillon (France), Chair of the ITWG on Forest GR,
introduced the report of the ITWG’s third session CGRFA-
15/15/12. CANADA and the US emphasized the intersessional
consultation process to further review the proposed indicators
of the implementation of the GPA-FGR, with the US
suggesting the need to reduce the number of indicators. The
EU proposed that material produced in the process of creating
the Report on the State of the World’s Forest GR (SoW-
FGR), such as the thematic studies, be widely disseminated,
including by publishing it on the FAO website. BIOVERSITY
INTERNATIONAL stressed that articles drawn from these
thematic studies are published in magazines with open access
and that the thematic studies that contain further information are
available on the FAO website.

GPA-FGR FOLLOW-UP: The Secretariat introduced
document CGRFA-15/15/13. BRAZIL, supported by the US,
suggested that the strategy for the implementation of the GPA-
FGR take into account and be consistent with the work of the
relevant international instruments and processes related to
forests. She also proposed that indigenous peoples and local
communities be involved in the process for developing technical
standards, where possible.

The EU encouraged regional collaboration on GPA-FGR
implementation, and called on FAO to develop information
systems to ensure dissemination of information produced
during GPA-FGR implementation. ARGENTINA highlighted
priority setting for implementation at the country level. AFRICA
called for technical support to foster experience sharing, and
community involvement in GPA-FGR implementation. The
EU and the US supported seeking extra-budgetary funding
and donor support for GPA-FGR implementation. The EU and
JAPAN suggested careful consideration of a funding strategy.

On coordinating and avoiding duplication of efforts in
implementing the GPA-FGR, FAO highlighted collaboration
with existing regional networks referenced in the report.

IN THE CORRIDORS

The threat of an evening plenary motivated delegates to catch
up with the agenda so that by the end of the day the meeting
was fully on track again. Not only did participants complete all
of today’s tasks, but they also resolved outstanding issues on
biodiversity and nutrition and biotechnologies. Some, however,
attributed the swift progress to other reasons, such as slimmed
down mandates. One delegate explained that agreement on
climate change and genetic resources, for example, is easier to
come by, now that mitigation is off this agenda.

Finding agreement on the right way to communicate the
Commission’s guidance on access and benefit-sharing to the
FAO Conference remained nonetheless elusive. While some said
a resolution would send a clear message regarding the CGRFA’s
contribution to implementing the Nagoya Protocol, others
cautioned that it could prejudge possible future negotiations on
specialized ABS regimes under the Commission. One delegate
recommended that the Secretariat should uphold the threat of
night sessions to ensure that ABS discussions will be resolved
on time.




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


